

Beacon Falls Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes March 09, 2023 C/O Town Clerk 10 Maple Avenue Beacon Falls, CT 06403 (Subject to Revision)

Members Present: Ben Smith (BS), Bruce Richard (BR), Mary Ellen Fernandes (MF),

and James Trzaski (**JT**)

Members Absent: John Paul Dorais (JPD)

Others Present: Leah Rajvong, Land Use Administrator (LR)

1. Call to Order / Pledge of Allegiance:

BS called the meeting to order at 7:33 P.M. and led the assembled in the pledge of allegiance.

2. Read and Approve Minutes from Previous Meeting:

Motion to approve the minutes from the regular monthly meeting held on 02/09/23 by MF, seconded by BR. All ayes.

3. <u>Correspondence:</u> LR brought correspondence from the Fire and EMS department. The

Firehouse would like to install a sign outside the zoning regulations.

Motion to add Fire House Sign - Discussion to agenda item 5. a made by **MF**, seconded by **BR**. All ayes.

Motion to add the review and approval of the new ZBA application to agenda item 5. b made by **JT**, seconded by **BR**. All ayes.

4. Old Business:

None

5. New Business:

- a. Discussion opened on if the firehouse should move forward with a variance process.
- b. ZBA Clerk presented a revised ZBA application to the board. Discussion opened. Motion to accept the application with an amendment to page 2, section 1 to include "alternatively you can pick up a copy of the application at Town Hall, First Selectman's Office, or Land Use Office. 10 Maple Avenue Beacon Falls, CT 06403. M-Th 9:00 AM-4:30 PM, F 9:00 AM-2:30 PM" BR/JT. All ayes.

Regular Meeting Minutes – ZBA Clerked by Lauren A. Fennell Meeting Date: 03/09/23



Beacon Falls Zoning Board of Appeals Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes March 09, 2023 C/O Town Clerk 10 Maple Avenue Beacon Falls, CT 06403 (Subject to Revision)

LR asked the board members if they knew the timeline of the appeals process. Should the ZEO make a denial decision, how long does the resident have to appeal the decision with the ZBA? Discussion opened regarding this question.

A Motion was made to recommend that the planning and zoning commission review if there is a timeline to appeal zoning citations and or denied zoning enforcement decisions requiring a variance. Should there not be a timeline, would the board establish a reasonable timeline? Made by **JT** and seconded by **BR**.

VOTE:

Ayes: 3

JT, BR, BS

Opposed: 1

MF

Abstained: 0

None

Motion carried.

6. Adjournment:

Motion to adjourn at 8:18 PM MF/BR, all ayes.

Respectfully submitted,

Laun A. Full

Lauren A. Fennell

Clerk, Zoning Board of Appeals

Town of Beacon Falls

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS Application Packet



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS GUIDELINES AND PROCEDURES FOR APPLICANTS

The following guidelines have been adopted by the Beacon Falls Zoning Board of Appeals in order to assist applicants in applying for a Certificate of Use, Certificate of Variance, a ruling and/or interpretation or any other decision that the Board may make pursuant to the powers authorized by the Connecticut General Statutes.

A variance is required when an applicant is proposing something on their property that is not permitted by the Zoning Regulations. In effect, you are requesting that the rules be broken for you based upon your unique situation as it relates to your property.

All applicants should follow the guidelines in the order as listed below:

- 1. Visit the Zoning Board of Appeals board page and complete the Zoning Board of Appeals webform. The town Office administrator will reach out to you directly for steps 2-3. Alternatively you can pick up a copy of the application at Town Hall, First Selectman's Office, or Land Use Office. 10 Maple Avenue Beacon Falls, CT 06403. M-Th 9:00 AM-4:30 PM, F 9:00 AM-2:30 PM.
- 2. The office administrator will explain the application process in detail, respond to any comments or questions regarding the application form, and inform you as to the documentation required to complete the process. The administrator will send you the application to complete via docusgin.
- 3. The office administrator will inform you as to the date and time of the next regularly scheduled meeting of the Zoning Board of Appeals and the deadline date for submitting the completed application. The Zoning Board of Appeals meets in the Assembly room at Town Hall. 10 Maple Avenue Beacon Falls, CT 06403. The second Thursday of each month, unless otherwise noted. All meeting dates, meeting minutes, and agendas are posted in the Office of the Town Clerk and are available for review on the Town of Town of Beacon Falls website https://www.beaconfalls-ct.org/.
- 4. In order to post the proper legal notice, the application form and other documentation must be complete. Staff to the Zoning Board of Appeals must receive all applications a minimum of twenty (20) days prior to the next regularly scheduled meeting. This requirement ensures that the required legal notices can be properly prepared, worded, and published in the newspaper in a timely manner as required by the Connecticut General Statutes.
- 5. A checklist attached to the application must be completed and submitted as part of the application.

The following items must be submitted with your application:

- Cash or a check for the required fee made payable to the Town of Beacon Falls.
- A legal description of the property obtained from the Land Records in the Beacon Falls Town Clerk's Office which includes the date of transaction and a complete copy of the deed. You can visit the Assessor's Office and look at your property card to obtain the volume and page number of your deed in the Land Records.

- A map/plot plan of the property detailing the location and design of all existing and proposed structures on the property. A plot plan is a bird's eye view of a property showing how a building is situated on a property. A plot plan typically shows setbacks of how far existing buildings or structures are located from the rear, side, and front yard property lines. The distances from these structures to property lines and the percentage of lot/ground coverage and floor area coverage shall be shown on the plot plan. A plot plan typically shows any easements, rights of way or drainage public or private that exist on a property. You may draw the plot plan yourself, but it must be clean, neatly done, and as accurate as possible. In certain instances, the Board may require an A- 2 survey by a Land Surveyor licensed in the State of CT in order to reach a decision.
- Architectural drawings of any proposed additions(s), showing the interior floor plan, dimensions, front, side, and rear views. Architectural drawings must include doors, windows, and any other permanent structures. Existing ground elevations must also be shown.
- A signed copy of the Notice to All Zoning Board of Appeal Applicants must be submitted with the Application for a variance.
- The applicant may submit photographs with the application or at the Public Hearing. All submitted photographs become part of the record and will remain with the application file in the Building and Land Use Office.
- 6. Your application form and other documentation must be submitted to the Land Use Office for final review. This will help insure the completeness of the application. The Beacon Falls Land Use Officer will provide all necessary forms and applications. The Land Use Officer can be of assistance in reviewing your plans; however, the officer cannot be responsible for the design of your plans or indicate the possible outcome of the Zoning Board of Appeals decision and/or any future appeal to the Superior Court.
- 7. As soon as the completed application form and related documentation has been received, the process will begin. You will be notified as to the date, time, and place of the public hearing via first class mail. All affected property owners, including yourself, are usually notified within ten (10) to fourteen (14) days prior to the public hearing.
- 8. Once the application is received, the required legal notice posted in the newspaper, and adjoining property owners are notified, the applicant must attend the public hearing on the application.
- 9. The applicant and or his agent must attend the public hearing and must be prepared to present the application to the Zoning Board of Appeals on the night of the public hearing. The following is a typical meeting scenario that may occur at a regular meeting of the Beacon Falls Zoning Board of Appeals:
 - The Chairman or presiding Officer of the Zoning Board of Appeals calls the meeting to order.
 - The Chairman announces the application on the public hearing agenda and then requests the Clerk of the Zoning Board of Appeals to read aloud the legal notice that was published twice in the newspaper.

- The Board will then ask if anyone is in the room to present the Variance Application. Please be aware that the Board has already received a copy of your application along with a staff memo reviewing the application. It is highly recommended that the applicant retain a copy of the submitted application and documents for their use when presenting the application to the Board.
- The applicant must either sit or stand at the meeting table and explain to the Board exactly what type of variance is being requested e.g. a front, rear, or side yard property setback that is different then what is permitted by the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls.
- The applicant and or his agent must be prepared to explain to the Board what hardship or unusual characteristics of their property warrant a variance from the Zoning Regulations, e.g. the unusual or unique characteristics of your property as compared to other properties in the same zoning district that makes it difficult for you to use your particular property in compliance with the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls.
- Financial difficulties or gains, health problems or any self-created hardships do not justify the receipt of a variance from the Zoning Board of Appeals.
- The Board will ask the applicant and or his agent questions as to what other options permitted by the Zoning Regulations were explored by the applicant before an application for a variance was submitted to the Zoning Board of Appeals.
- 10. The Board must consider the following facts when reviewing a request for a variance. The Board is not being adversarial when it asks questions of the applicant or listens to public comment on an application. The Board has a responsibility pursuant to the Connecticut General Statutes to consider the following:
 - Does the applicant have reasonable use of their property without the variance?
 - Are there extraordinary or unique physical conditions e.g. slope, wetlands, peculiar and unique to the property in question that amount to more than an inconvenience to the property owner and have these unique characteristics arisen from the property itself rather that a situation that is personal to the current property owner e.g. a growing family requires an addition to the existing home on a small lot and the addition will be located less that the permitted setback from the property lines as prescribed by the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls.
 - Would the strict application of the Zoning Regulations deprive the applicant of substantially the same rights enjoyed by owners of other lots in the zoning district subject to the same zoning regulation?
 - Will the granting of the variance be in harmony with the Plan of Conservation and Development of the Town of Beacon Falls?
 - Will the granting of the variance be in character with the surrounding neighborhood?

- 11. After the Board has heard from the applicant and the public and asked questions, the Board has the following options:
 - The Board can close the hearing and render a decision that night.
 - The Board can continue the hearing for thirty five (35) days in order to permit the applicant to provide more information for the next public hearing. Once the public hearing is closed, no new information can be submitted by the applicant or received by the Board from any parties.
 - The Board can close the hearing and table action on the application because the Board has sixty five (65) days from the date of the close of the public hearing to render a decision on the application.
 - The Board may continue the public hearing and schedule a site walk to visit the property, which is the subject of the variance application. A site walk is not a meeting at which testimony will be taken by the Board members rather it is an opportunity for the Board members to see the property themselves prior to rendering a decision on a pending application.
- 12. If the Board makes a decision on the application, staff will send a letter of the Board's decision to the applicant and publish a legal notice in the newspaper within fifteen (15) days from the date of the decision of the Board. If the Board approves the application it may take up to two (2) weeks after the decision for staff to have the Certificate of Variance ready for the applicant to file on the Land Records of the Town of Beacon Falls as the Certificate of Variance must be signed by a Officer of the Board before it can be filed on the Land Records.

Hardship

A variance constitutes permission to act in a manner that is otherwise prohibited under the Zoning Regulations of the Town. Therefore, an applicant must show that, because of some unusual characteristic of the property, the strict application of the Zoning Regulations produces an "exceptional difficulty or unusual hardship."

A hardship is an unusual feature of a particular piece of property that prevents the landowner from making a reasonable use of the property in conformance with the existing zoning regulations. A hardship has nothing to do with the personal circumstances of the landowner. The fact that the landowner might be able to make a more profitable use of the land if it were not for the zoning regulations does not equate to hardship.

When the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) grants a variance, it must by state statute act in harmony with the general purpose and intent of the regulations and must give due consideration to conserving the public health, safety, convenience, welfare, and property values. In granting a variance, the ZBA acts solely with respect to the parcel of land having unusual conditions, not generally encountered within the zoning district that would make development in full accordance with the regulations extremely difficult. In legal terms, the condition must be such that a literal enforcement of the zoning regulations would result in exceptional difficulty or unusual hardship so that, in granting the variance, substantial justice will be done and the public welfare and safety secured.

Financial considerations are rarely a valid reason for issuing a variance. Possible economic advantage to the landowner is not sufficient. In addition, the fact that the proposed use will not be detrimental, and may even be beneficial, to the neighborhood is not sufficient. The hardship must arise from the application of the regulations to the land and not to the landowner, and the land must be peculiarly disadvantaged by the regulation for which a variance is sought.



Town of Beacon Falls Zoning Board of Appeals 10 Maple Avenue Beacon Falls, CT 06403 Telephone: (203) 729-4340, 101

Office Use Only:	
Application #	
Date:	
Fee:	

APPLICATION TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

Location of property for variance:	
Lot area acres.	
Zoning district: R-2 R-2 R-3 PRDI PARD #1 PARD #2 PARD #3 PARD #	
Is the property within 500 feet of an abutting Tow	vn? Yes No
If so, which towns? Bethany Oxford	_ Naugatuck Seymour CT State Forest
Applicant Name:	Address:
Phone Number:	Email:
Owner (s) Name:	Address:
Phone Number:	Email:
a Certificate of Non	Zoning Regulations -Conforming Use rtificate Approval of Location
Specify all the variances requested	Applicable Zoning Regulation
Specify the nature of the Hardship:	

Has any previous appeal been filed in connection wit	h this property? Yes No	
If so, when and for what purpose?		
Note: Please use the attached checklist to verify t paperwork is submitted with it.	he application is complete and all the required	
I; We; hereby depose and say that all of the above sta any papers submitted herewith are true to the best of		
I; We; as the applicant and/or owner hereby consent to Above mentioned property by the Board and its designivestigate the site conditions and to monitor implementation.	nated agents, at reasonable times to	
Signature of all owners	Date	

Please Note: State law requires that the hearing on your application must commence within sixty five (65) days after receipt of the application.

If the application is submitted by a Limited Liability Corporation (LLC) or a Limited Liability Partnership (LLP) or if the owner of the property is an LLC or LLP the applicant must provide written documentation as to who are the members of the LLC or LLP.

The applicant must provide written permission from the members of the LLC or LLP permitting the filing of the Variance Application. This permission may be in the form of a written corporate resolution signed and dated by all members of the LLC or LLP or other signed and dated authorization from the owners of the property.

If it is member-managed LLC or LLP, all members of the LLC or LLP must sign a written document granting permission for the application to be filed.

APPLICATION CHECKLIST FOR ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

This checklist must be submitted with the completed application (Please check as each item is completed)

Check/cash for the required fee made payable to the Town of Beacon Falls.
Legal description of the property. The legal description can be obtained from the Town Clerk's Office.
Map of the property showing all structures with complete dimensions and setbacks from the front, rear and side yard property lines. A carefully drawn plot plan by the applicant should suffice. The board does reserve the right to require an A-2 survey of the property.
Show locations of septic, well, sewer line, and inland wetlands. If the property has a septic system or a well, evidence of written approval from the Naugatuck Valley Health District is required. If the property is serviced by public sewer, evidence of written approval from the Superintendent of the Wastewater Treatment Plant may be required depending upon the scope of your application. If the property has inland wetlands and watercourses, then an application and approval may be required from the Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Commission (IWWC) or the Wetland Enforcement Officer (WEO). Evidence of the written approval from the IWWC or the WEO must be submitted with your application.
If an A-2 survey is required, the survey must be prepared by Licensed Land Surveyor in the State of Connecticut. The survey must bear the seal and signature of the surveyor.
Architectural drawings of any proposed addition(s) showing the interior floor plan the dimensions, front, side and rear views. Existing ground elevations must also be shown. Architectural drawings must include doors, windows, and any other permanent structures.
The submission of photographs with your application is optional. Any photographs that are submitted with the application or at the public hearing shall become part of the application record. Any photos will remain in the Zoning Board of Appeals file in the Building and Land Use Office.

Notice to All Zoning Board of Appeals Applicants This checklist must be submitted with the completed application.

- 1. The Application to the Zoning Board of Appeals must be filled out **completely or it may be denied** by the Board as incomplete.
- 2. The Hardship must satisfy Connecticut State Statutes Requirements.
- 3. **Application fees are not refundable. The application fee is \$375.00** (Section 22a-27j of the Connecticut General Statutes requires an additional fee of \$60.00 to be charged for all ZBA applications). payable to the Town of Beacon Falls.
- 4. Naugatuck Valley Health District Approval is required if the property has an onsite septic system or private water supply.
 - (See applications for Naugatuck Valley Health District in the Building/Land Use Office)
- 5. Inland Wetlands and Watercourses. If the property has inland wetlands or watercourses located onsite, an application may be required to be submitted to the Inland Wetlands and Watercourses Commission (IWWC) or to the Wetlands Enforcement Officer (WEO). There are fees are associated with the submittal of an application to IWWC or the WEO. (See informational sheet entitled "Notice to all IWWC Applicants")
- 6. **Outside Consultants Costs:** (An outside consultant means a professional who is not an officer or employee of the Town).
 - If the Board requires a review by an Outside Consultant, e.g. engineer, hydrologist, environmental, or planning consultant, the applicant must pay for the cost of the outside consultants review. If the Board requests an outside consultant, a written estimate of the cost for the review is requested by Board Staff and the written estimate is sent to the applicant. The applicant then pays the Town for the cost of the review and the Town pays the outside consultant for the review. The review of the outside consultant will not begin until the cost of the review is paid by the applicant to the Town of Beacon Falls. If the cost of the outside consultant review fee is not paid in a timely manner, it may lead to the denial of your application by the Board as incomplete due to the required statutory time frames as to when the Board must render a decision on your application.
- 7. Applicants are responsible for all costs associated with this application;
 - Minimum of three (3) legal notices published in the newspaper. Publication is required by the CT General Statutes,
 - Certified mailing of the decision of the Board required by the CT General Statutes.
 - Notification to abutting property owners of the application and the Public Hearing.
 - If the Board approves your variance request, an application for a zoning permit must be completed.
 - Associated building permit fees once all your approvals and documentation is complete.

plication submitted to the Beacon Falls Z	Jimg Board of Appears.
Applicant or Agent	Date
Witnessed by	 Date

By signing this, you acknowledge that you have read all of the information stated in this document entitled "Notice to all Zoning Board Appeals Applicants" and agree to pay all costs associated

This sheet must be submitted with the completed application.

<u>Frequently asked Questions regarding the Zoning Board of Appeals</u> <u>Application Process for Variances</u>

What is a variance of the Zoning Regulations?

A variance permits you to act in a manner that is not permitted within the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls. An example of a variance would be a request to locate an addition to a house closer to a side and rear yard property line then is permitted by the Zoning Regulations.

An applicant must show the Board of Appeals that because of something particular to your property, the strict application of the Zoning Regulations produces an exceptional difficulty or unusual hardship that is different from the other properties in the same area of town. The hardship or exceptional difficulty cannot be created by the property owner e.g. "self created hardship".

Why do I need a variance?

Whatever you are proposing is not permitted by the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls.

Who can grant a variance to the requirements of the Zoning Regulations?

The Zoning Board of Appeals pursuant to Section 8-5 and 8-6 of the Connecticut General Statutes is the only Board in Beacon Falls that can grant a variance to the Zoning Regulations.

When does the Zoning Board of Appeals meet?

The Zoning Board of Appeals meets the second Thursday of each month unless otherwise noted. The Board meets at 7:30 PM in the Assembly Room located at 10 Maple Avenue Beacon Falls, CT 06403. All meeting dates, agendas, and meeting minutes are posted in the Office of the Town Clerk or are available for review on the Town of Beacon Falls website https://www.beaconfalls-ct.org/.

How does the Zoning Board of Appeals conduct their hearings?

The Chairman of the Zoning Board of Appeals will call the meeting to order and the Secretary of the Board will read the legal notice into the record of the meeting. The Applicant must then stand or sit at the meeting table and present their application to the Board.

How do I obtain an application?

You can request the application by completing the ZBA interest webform on the Beacon Falls town website. https://www.beaconfalls-ct.org. The full application will be sent to you via docusign.

How does an Applicant present the application to the Board?

The Board has already received a copy of your application with a staff memo reviewing the application. It is suggested that the applicant retain a copy of the submitted application so it can be used by the applicant when presenting the application to the Board.

The Applicant must either sit or stand at the meeting table with the Board and explain to the Board exactly what type of variance is being requested ig. a front, rear, or side yard property setback that is different then what is permitted by the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls. The applicant must also be prepared to explain to the Board what hardship or unusual characteristics of their property warrant a variance from the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls. What are the unusual or unique characteristics of your property as compared to other properties in the same zoning district that make it difficult for you to use your particular property in compliance with the Zoning Regulations?

The Applicant can submit photographs of the property to assist the Board in rendering a decision on the application.

Does the Board make a decision the same night as the public hearing?

The Board has thirty five (35) days to keep the hearing open on the application. If additional information is required, the Board may keep the public hearing open to allow the applicant or anyone else to provide additional information.

If all the information is received the night of the public hearing and the Board does not have any further questions the Board may close the public hearing on the application and render a decision that night.

Please be aware that the Board may close the public hearing the same night the hearing is opened, but may not render a decision until the next monthly meeting.

The Board has sixty five (65) days from the date the public hearing is closed to render a decision on the application.

Does the Board visit the property, which is the subject of the variance?

Yes, the Board members may visit the site individually prior to the public hearing on the Application.

Or

The Board may schedule a field trip to view the site together. The field trip is a posted public meeting of the Board filed with the Town Clerk. There is not any discussion on a field trip. The field trip is intended to provide clarification for Board members.

How many members are on the Zoning Board of Appeals?

The Board consists of five (5) regular members and three (3) alternate members.

Are there a certain number of votes of the Board members that is required in order to grant a variance?

Yes, pursuant to Section 8-7 of the Connecticut General Statutes there must be four (4) affirmative votes of the Zoning Board of Appeals in order to grant a variance to the Zoning Regulations of the Town of Beacon Falls.

A vote three (3) in favor and two (2) opposed to the variance request constitutes a denial of the variance.

A tie vote two (2) in favor of the variance and two (2) opposed to the variance constitutes a denial.

A vote two (2) in favor of the variance and two (2) opposed to the variance and an abstention constitutes a denial.

The Zoning Board of Appeals will always ask the applicant if there are only four (4) Board members present if the applicant would prefer that the Board wait to vote on an application until five Board members are present.

If my application is approved, what is the time frame to receive my zoning approvals?

The Zoning Enforcement Officer (ZEO) will publish the legal notice in the newspaper within fifteen (15) days from the date of the decision. An approval letter will be mailed by the ZEO within fifteen (15) days from the date of the approval.

A Certificate of Variance will be signed by an Officer of the Zoning Board of Appeals and the Applicant must file the Certificate of Variance in the Land Records in the Office of the Beacon Falls Town Clerk within one year from the date of the Approval.

Once the Certificate of Variance is filed then you may complete the administrative application for a Zoning Permit and upon payment of the Application fee for the Administrative Zoning Permit and review by the ZEO, you will receive your Administrative Zoning Permit.

The Zoning Permit does not constitute a Building Permit. Please see the Building Official about necessary building permits.

Do I need to pay a fee in order to file an application for a Variance?

Yes, there is an application fee that must be paid. The applicant is also responsible for paying the cost of the publication of any legal notices in the newspaper and any mailing or administrative costs required by Chapter 146 Fees of the Code of the Town of Beacon Falls and the Connecticut General Statutes.

See Notice to All Zoning Board of Appeals Applicants in the Zoning Board of Appeals Application Packet.

Is the Application fee refundable if my Application for a Variance is denied by the Zoning Board of Appeals?

No

If my Application for a Variance is denied, can I reapply to the Zoning Board of Appeals?

Yes, you may reapply but be aware Section 8-6 of the Connecticut General Statutes states that No Zoning Board of Appeals shall be required to hear any application for the same variance or substantially the same variance for a period of six (6) months after a decision by the Zoning Board of Appeals or by a court on an earlier application.